

Opra for EPR version 3.91

Annex B – Opra Scheme for Waste Facilities

April 2017 April 2017

We are the Environment Agency. We protect and improve the environment and make it a better place for people and wildlife.

We operate at the place where environmental change has its greatest impact on people's lives. We reduce the risks to people and properties from flooding; make sure there is enough water for people and wildlife; protect and improve air, land and water quality and apply the environmental standards within which industry can operate.

Acting to reduce climate change and helping people and wildlife adapt to its consequences are at the heart of all that we do.

ent is out of date apart from pages 5 to 13. We cannot do this alone. We work closely with a wide range of partners including government, business, local authorities, other agencies, civil society groups and the communities we serve.

#### Published by:

**Environment Agency** Horizon house, De Road. **Bristol BS1 5AH** 

Email: enquiri environment-agency.gov.uk www.environ nt-agency.gov.uk

© Environment Agency 2017

rights reserved. This document may be reproduced with prior permission of the Environment Agency.

# **Contents**

Introduction	4
1. Complexity Attribute	5
2. Emissions and Inputs Attribute	
3. Location Attribute	10
4. Operator Performance (Management Systems) Attribute	14
Enforcement history	15
5. Compliance Rating Attribute	18
Enforcement history  5. Compliance Rating Attribute  Determining your compliance rating band  Compliance Classification Scheme  6. Abbreviations  Appendix 1 – Rehabilitation of Offenders Guidance  The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 Guidance	18
Compliance Classification Scheme	18
6. Abbreviations	21
Appendix 1 – Rehabilitation of Offenders Guidance	22
The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 Guidance	23
The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 Guidance	

# Introduction

This document has been written to help you work out your Operational Risk Appraisal (Opra) banded profile for permitted waste facilities which have some activities that are the most complicated/highest risk (tier 3 activities). It will help you understand how your activities and how well you manage them, affect your charges.

This annex will help you work out your Opra banded profile for a waste facility. guidance on completing the Opra spreadsheet for waste facilities is available.

You should read this document in conjunction with the Environmental Permitting Requiations Operational Risk Appraisal Scheme (Opra for EPR) version 3.91 to which this document is an annex.

Information about what you should do if, at any time, you don't agree with Opra score is detailed in the Environmental Permitting Regulations Operational Risk Appaisal Scheme (Opra KYOM for EPR) version 3.91 document.

#### Related documents

Together the following documents all relate to our Opra scheme and the links to charges. The document you are currently reading is highlighted in **back** below. There may be other documents in the list that help you find the type of permit you need and to work out your Opra banded profile and related charges.

- Environmental Permitting Regulations Permitting Regulations Risk Appraisal Scheme (Opra for EPR) version 3.91
  - Annex A Opra scheme for installations
    - How to complete an Opra spreadsheet for installations
  - Annex B Opra scheme for waste facilities
    - How to complete an Opra spreadsheet for waste facilities
  - Annex C Opra scheme for mining waste operations
    - How to complete an Opra spreadsheet for mining waste operations
  - Annex Dopra for permits with fixed charges
- Environmental Permitting Charging Scheme and Guidance 2014

All these documents are available by calling our general enquiry line on 03708 506 506.

# 1. Complexity Attribute

#### How to calculate your complexity attribute

Complexity bands for waste facilities are based on the type of facility identified using a system that categorises waste facilities from A01 to A29.

You can find the Opra band for the complexity attribute from the look-up table (1A) below. An explanation of what we mean by facility type and what types of activity are covered by each code is included in "How to complete an Opra for waste facilities spreadsheet – appendix 1"... O

The complexity activities are the activities included in your permit, whether or not you actually carry out that activity. If you no longer carry out a process that contributes to the complexity attribute, you can only remove these elements from your profile by applying for and being granted a variation or a part surrender of your permit.

#### If your permit covers one type of waste facility

Select the type of facility you operate using Table 1A and, from this dentify the complexity band for your facility.

#### If your permit covers more than one type of facility waste facility group

If you operate more than one type of waste treating, keeping and/or recovery operation, identify the complexity band for each type of maste operation from Table 1A and use the highest band.

If your waste facility has waste treating/keeping/recovery operations and a landfill operation (either open or closed), then identify two complexity bands from Table 1A - one for the landfill and one for the highest banded waste treating/keeping/recovery activity.

If you aren't sure of your facility type please speak to your local Environment Agency contact by calling 03708 506 506.

Enter your facility type(s) on the spreadsheet and your band will automatically be given.

**Table 1A Complexity Attribute look-up table** 

Facility type	Complexity band	Notes
Landfill		
A01 - Co-disposal landfill site - Open	EEE	1 and 4
A01 - Co-disposal landfill site - Closed	В	2
A02 - Other landfill site taking hazardous waste - Open	EE .	1 and 4
A02 - Other landfill site taking hazardous waste - Closed	ВС	2
A03 - Borehole (Closed)		
A04 - Household, commercial and industrial waste landfill - Open	QDD	1 and 4
A04 - Household, commercial and industrial waste landfill - Closed	В	2
A04 - Dredging sites	В	3
A05 - Landfill taking non-biodegradable wastes - Open	С	
A05 - Landfill taking non-biodegradable wastes - Cloud	Α	
L05 - Landfill Directive compliant inert landfill	С	
L05 - landfill Directive compliant inert landfill - Closed	Α	
A06 - Landfill taking other wastes - Spen	С	
A06 - Landfill taking other waste Closed	Α	
A07 - Industrial waste landfill (ractory curtilage) - Open	С	
A07 - Industrial waster and fill (factory curtilage) - Closed	Α	
A08 - Lagoon – Open	С	
A08 - Lagoon - Closed	Α	
Transfer / treatment		
09 - Hazardous waste transfer station	D	
A10 - In-house storage facility	В	
A11 - Household, commercial and industrial waste transfer station	С	
A12 - Clinical waste transfer station	D	
A13 - Household waste amenity site not taking hazardous waste	В	

A13a - Household waste amenity site taking hazardous waste	С	
A14 - Transfer station taking non-biodegradable wastes	В	
A15 - Material recycling facility	Α	
A16 - Physical treatment of non-hazardous waste facility	А	
A16a – Physical treatment of hazardous waste	D	
A17 - Physico-chemical treatment facility	E	10
A16a – Physical treatment of hazardous waste A17 - Physico-chemical treatment facility A18 - Incinerator (other than pet crematorium) A19 - Metal recycling site (vehicle dismantler) A19a - End of life vehicles <2500 tonne per year A20 - Metal recycling site (MRS) (mixed) A21 - Chemical treatment facility A22 - Composting facility A23 - Biological treatment facility A24 - Mobile plant A25 - Deposit of waste to land as a recovery peration	DC	$\mathcal{L}$
A19 - Metal recycling site (vehicle dismantler)	80	
A19a - End of life vehicles <2500 tonne per year	OB	
A20 - Metal recycling site (MRS) (mixed)	n c	
A21 - Chemical treatment facility	E	
A22 - Composting facility	С	
A23 - Biological treatment facility	С	
A24 - Mobile plant	В	5
A25 - Deposit of waste to land as a recovery peration	В	
A26 - Category not used in Opra	n/a	
A27 - Incinerator (pet crematorium)	Α	
A28 - Category not used in Coa	n/a	
A29 - Gas engine for borning of landfill or other bio-gas	В	5

#### Note 1

Where the banding for an activity is listed with multiple letters the activity is more complex. Score1 times each lettered band for each time the letter is listed, e.g. DD score 2 times band D,  $2 \times 50$  score = 100. You can no longer apply for a new permit for this activity.

Complexity bands for "Closed" landfills reflect landfill status after we have accepted definitive closure (where sites closed under the Landfill Directive), or where post closure inspections have commenced (where sites closed under WML). Thus, if the landfill is not in 'aftercare', the 'Open' facility type applies.

#### Note 3

'The deposit of non-hazardous dredging sludge alongside small waterways from where they have been dredged out', is excluded from the Landfill Directive. Certain small dredging

activities are exempt from the need for an EPR permit. However, the deposit of hazardous dredging sludge, the deposit of dredging sludge away from the waterway from where they have been dredged or their deposit outside the scope of the exemption is subject to permitting under EPR and the Landfill Directive as a waste operation.

Special complexity band for "Open" Landfills. This facility type code only applies to A01, A02 and A04 landfills that are currently operational and were granted a waste management licence after October 1999. We have not yet varied these permits to an EPR-style permit following implementation of the Landfill Directive. The band will also apply to sites that were required to apply for a PPC permit under the Landfill Directive but for whatever reason did not obtain a permit and are progressing to definite closure

If you operate a mobile plant (A24) or a gas engine for burning landfill gas prother bio-gas (A29) facility then note the requirements for emissions and inputs on page 9. ...dfill c.s on page...s on page...s on page...s on page...s of date abart from

# 2. Emissions and Inputs Attribute

#### How to calculate your emissions and inputs attribute

#### **Emission threshold and index**

This attribute is based on the quantities and types of waste that you have applied for or, an permitted on your site as stated in your permit (annual tonnage of inputs), rather than assessing each individual substance.

We use an 'emission threshold' to separate different types of waste and to allocate their relative importance. The emission threshold is used to calculate an "emission index" for each type of waste. These are added together to give a score that reflects the quantities and types of waste you are permitted to manage.

#### Work out your annual tonnage of inputs

You need to identify the amount of waste input to your site on an annual basis. If you are applying for a new permit, it will be the amount of waste when are applying to process on an annual basis.

If your facility already has a permit, use the amounts given in specific limits in the permit conditions. If your existing permit doesn't have a specific limit on the amount of waste for the annual tonnage of inputs and the different types of waste you can accept, you should use an average waste input figure from your recent annual waste return data.

If your permit allows you to process different types of waste, for example inert and hazardous waste, but there is no specific limit on the maximum tonnage of hazardous waste, you should use the total waste amount of the waste type with the lowest emission threshold (in this example, hazardous waste).

Enter your annual tonnage(s) into the spreadsheet under annual tonnage. Your emissions index and band will be calculated automatically.

### If you operate a probile plant:

The emissions and inputs band will default to a complexity band B.

## If you eperate a gas engine for the burning of landfill or bio-gas:

The emissions and inputs band will default to a band A

#### Return to Contents

# 3. Location Attribute

#### How to calculate your location attribute

We have developed questions around seven topics. To calculate your location band, answer the questions in the location tab of the Opra spreadsheet.

#### **Human occupation/presence**

This takes account of the distance from the installation boundary to the nearest public or private occupied building (house, school, office, hospital, nursing home etc.) This also includes open spaces where people are regularly present (playing fields, alcunents, parks etc.) and other private occupied premises that may form part of multi-operator installations.

You shouldn't include land that people rarely use, (farmland, and privately owned woodland) and buildings that only contain your employees as you have reconsibilities towards them under health and safety legislation.

#### Statutory nature conservation areas

If your waste facility is within a certain distance of important nature conservation areas, such as sites designated under the Habitats Directive and Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CRoW), then the impact of emissions on the conservation areas must be assessed during the determination of your permit.

Once we have determined your permit, it is find that your facility will have no adverse effect on the habitat or does not require a RoW assessment, we will adjust your Opra profile to reflect this.

When submitting your first point application, you must answer "yes" to the questions in the spreadsheet if your waste facility meets the criteria outlined below.

Distances are measured from your waste facility boundary to the identified conservation site.

The location of conservation sites designated under the Habitats Directive and CRoW can be found the Natural England and Natural Resources Wales websites.

For nature conservation areas to be "relevant", they must meet certain proximity criteria in relation to the proposed waste facility. These criteria vary depending on the type of waste facility and are given below. If the facility is "relevant", then you must select "yes" even if the facility will have no effect on the site.

If your waste facility does not meet any of the criteria for either Habitats or CRoW, then answer "no".

If your waste facility requires assessment for both the Habitats Directive and CroW then select "Habitats".

	Sites	Distance
CRoW	Sites of Special Scientific Interest	2km
Habitats Directive	Ramsar Sites	
	Special Areas of Conservation	<ul> <li>Not a landfill = 1km</li> <li>Landfill that could attract gulls or</li> </ul>
	Special Protection Areas	<ul> <li>members of the crow family = 5km</li> <li>All other landfills = 2km</li> </ul>
	Marine Potential Special Protection Areas	wom V

There are a number of other nature conservation, heritage and landscape designations such as Scheduled Ancient Monuments, National Nature Reserves and Local Wildlife Sites. The proximity of these to your facility does not influence your Opra profile but we may consider them when permitting your facility.

If you vary your permit or the status of the designated site changes this may impact on this element of your profile and we may adjust your Opra profile accordingly. Contact your local Agency officer if you require any information on the requirements of the Habitats Directive or the CRoW Act.

#### Groundwater/aquifers

You can find if your site is in a Groundwater Protection Zone (GPZ) (also referred to as Groundwater Source Protection Zone) or on an aquifer from our website on "What's In Your Back Yard" You will need to score regardless of the Zone number, even if it is a "Special Zone".

There are two types of aquifer designation; these are Superficial (drift) and Bedrock. You should look at both of these to determine if your site is on an aquifer. If your site is on "Unproductive Strata" then you do not need to score.

## Sensitivity of receiving waters

You need to consider any waters where there is any **potential** pathway for pollution, such as a dry ditch or drainage system that could transmit any spill to groundwater and/or surface water and how the water could be affected.

The way we classify sensitivity of receiving waters has changed with the introduction of the Water Framework Directive (WFD).

However, we will continue to use the General Quality Assessment (GQA) approach that Opra has used in previous years, using the last available data – for 2009.

If the boundary of your waste facility is within 10 metres of any receiving water, even if your drainage is an entirely closed system, you need to make an entry for the sensitivity of receiving waters.

You do not receive a score if your site meets the following criteria:

- Is over 10m from any receiving waters; and
- Is an entirely enclosed system or has all surface or foul water discharging to sewer for sewage treatment.

We classify the sensitivity of receiving waters for GQA in terms of both chemical probiological water quality. We rate the water quality from A to E, where A represents the perfect quality, and E the lowest. When answering this question you should use the relevant water quality classification for your facility. If there is a score for both biological and chemical use the higher. This information is found on WIYBY.

To convert the letter-based classification into numeric grades used within Opra, use:

Class A or estuarine/coastal = 1

Class B = 2

Class C = 3

Class D = 4

Class E or F = 5

Discharging to more than one	Choose closest score, or if they are the
watercourse?	same distance, use the more sensitive
Discharging to an unclassified stretch than	Use sensitivity of classified stretch
joins a classified stretch within 1km?	
Is the closest classified stretch over 1km	Use the score of 2
away?	
Is there any evidence to show the	
watercourse:	
<ul> <li>Supports salmonids, or has direct</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Score of 3</li> </ul>
impact on warrs covered by the	
Bathing Waters or Shellfish	
Directives?	
<ul><li>Is a dr/ ditch?</li></ul>	<ul> <li>Score of 1</li> </ul>
Does the discharge to a soakaway or	Use the score of 1
land, rather than surface water?	
1 (4)	

You can find information on the quality of surface waters in the What's in Your Back Yard (WIYBY) pages on our website or by contacting your local Environment Agency office. If you have any concerns about this issue, discuss them with your local Environment Agency contact.

#### Direct run-off

If your site has any surface water run-off you need to indicate whether or not this is via an interceptor, lockable valve, or other type of mechanism that allows the operator to control the

release of contaminated drainage. This includes any surface water that drains to groundwater, surface water or unmade ground.

#### Air quality management zones

Air Quality Management Zones(AQMZ) (also referred to as Air Quality Management Areas) are areas your local council have identified as needing a plan to improve air quality. If your facility boundary lies in, or is within 2km of, an AQMZ, you need to check whether or not your operations emit a declared pollutant, i.e. one specified by the local authority for that AQMZ. If you emit a declared pollutant even though you have no emission limit value for the substance you must capture this in the spreadsheet.

#### Flood plain

This document is out of date about from party You can find out if your facility is in a fluvial or coastal flood plain and at risk of feeding, by entering your facility's postcode in our flood-risk mapping tool. You can access his facility

# 4. Operator Performance (Management Systems) Attribute

#### How to calculate your operator performance attribute

This attribute takes into account the following factors, which each have a table in the operator performance tab of the spreadsheet and related questions. We have produced three sets of questions for some parts of this attribute to reflect the different levels of risk/sombistication needed in an Environmental Management System (EMS) for the various types of regulated facilities. We will audit your management systems once a permit has been issued.

Management systems:

Operations and maintenance
Competence and training
Emergency planning
Organisation
Enforcement history

For each of these tables you should add your own references to relevant documents in the final column, for example certificate number Cartification body and their registration number with UKAS (UK Accreditation Service). You should send us copies of any document you with UKAS (UK Accreditation Service). You should send us copies of any document you reference here with your application,

The responses you provide to the destions relates to your facility. If you have a corporate EMS we need to ensure that the overarching EMS has been adopted into operating procedures at your tacility.

If you are an Operator opplying for a permit for the first time you may not have all the procedures in place that constitute an EMS.

We recognise that you may be in the process of producing your EMS at the application stage, with an expectation that the full procedures will be in place when the permit is determined. In these instances, you can answer where appropriate 'yes' to some of the questions in the Operator Performance attribute of the profile.

Once the permit is determined, where you have claimed that you have elements of an EMS then these will need to be in place as they are likely be checked during the first site visit. If all claimed elements of the EMS are not in place then the Opra profile will be adjusted to reflect this and any breach of permit condition(s) recorded using the Compliance Classification Scheme.

If you have a permit for more than one facility and each is covered by an EMS the procedures that you have in place should relate to each individual facility.

ISO 9001 is not an environmental specific management system. Whilst you get credit for having ISO 9001 you will obtain more credit if you have an EMS in place.

If you have EMAS or ISO 14001, certified by an organisation accredited by the UKAS, then you need to supply details of:

- The certificate:
- The name of the certification body;
- The certification body's registration number with UKAS.

.Once a permit has been issued then the time period for this question is reduced to the years.

"Environmental reports" refers to externally published reports for shareholders, etc detailing progress against set environmental targets.

## **Enforcement history**

A record of environmental enforcement action at your site would indicate that we need to regulate your site more closely. The Opra banded profile of Operators who perform poorly will be altered. This may affect your charges.

Table 4E Penalty points system for enforcement history

Type of action	Points after 1 <sup>st</sup> event	Points after 2 <sup>nd</sup> event if not spent	Points after 3 <sup>rd</sup> event if not spent
E1 Enforcement/ improvement/ works notice/compliance and restoration notice(s) in the same year for different events	-5	-10	
E2 Formal caution/a fixed monetary penalty/enforcement undertaking(s) in a 3-year period for different events	-5	-10	-40
Suspension/ prohibition/ revocation notice/stop notice(s) in a 3-year period for different events	-10	-40	70

E4 Variable monetary penalty/conviction(s) in the last 5 years by the Environment Agency (under and legislation) or by HSE under COMAH or by local authority under part I or II of Environment Protection Act 1990	-15	-40	
--	-----	-----	--

Other possible combinations of enforcement actions/points scores resulting from different time periods before compliance action classed as "spent" (see Appendix 1)

Actions	Points
a) E1plus E2	-10
b) two E1s plus E2	-15
c) E2 plus one E3	-15
d) E1plus E2 plus E3	-40
e) two E1s plus E2 plus E3	-40
f) E1 plus E3	-40
g) two E1s plus E3	-40
h) two E3s	<b>∌</b> ℃
i) two E2s plus E3	-40
j) E4 plus any E1or E2 or E3	-40

The scoring systems under enforcement history reflect the timescales under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (see page 22). For Opra, the time to become 'spent' for notices issued by the COMAH competent authority is the same as if they were notices we had issued, for example a COMAH improvement notice would become spent after one year.

#### For the Opra penalty points system:

- Enforcement, improvement, works, compliance and restoration notices are considered spent after one year.
- Formal cautions, fixed monetary penalty and enforcement undertakings are considered spent after three years.
- Suspension, prohibition and revocation and stop notices are considered spent after three years.
- The period before convictions are considered spent is governed by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (see Appendix 1).
  - Variable monetary penalties are considered spent after five years
  - Multiple notices served at the same time, in relation to the same event, will count as one notice.
  - Formal cautions which cover more than one offence committed at the same time, or in relation to the same event, will count as one formal caution.
  - The date of issue of a notice or formal caution will be taken into account when

determining the number of notices or formal cautions received within any period.

We may need to escalate our enforcement action for a specific non-compliant event, for example issuing a suspension notice after an enforcement notice. There are two scenarios in these cases.

**Scenario A –** Where this occurs in the same calendar year

Scenario B – It doesn't happen in the same calendar year
In year one, the enforcement notice counts (minus 5 points) and, in year two the suspension notice counts (minus 10 points).

Return to Contents

This document is out to date and at the counts of the same event, only the suspension notice counts (minus 10 points). If an enforcement notice is followed by a suspension notice for the same event, only the

# 5. Compliance Rating Attribute

## **Determining your compliance rating band**

Compliance rating identifies the risk arising from operating regulated facilities. It shows those operators and facilities who we would regard as higher risk and so need extra regulatory effort for compliance assessment

We calculate your compliance rating after your permit has been issued.

## **Compliance Classification Scheme**

We've adopted a standard approach to classify permit breaches known as the Compliance Classification Scheme (CCS). Compliance rating is based on the CCS events over the course of a calendar year (January to December). Non-compliances identified and recorded in 2016 are used to work out the compliance rating for 2017 Opra banded profiles and charges. In the first year after your permit is issued the compliance rating will be based on any non-compliance from when your permit is issued until 31 December.

#### Management system assessment

Where we find a serious management system failed we will review the management system section of your Opra banded profile. This will happen if we find a failure that scores a CCS Category 1 or 2, or for repeated failures that score 3 or 4. We'll look at how effective your management system is as part of our consulance assessment.

## Converting CCS points into an Opra band

We convert permit breaches into a points system, and add the points from each event to give an annual total non-compliance point. We allocate points based on the relative amount of additional work we usually have to do while dealing with different types of permit breach. For category 1 breaches some of our costs are recovered through subsequent legal action, for example costs allocated following prosecution. We have taken this into account when we calculating the points score.

70 <sub>C/7</sub>	CCS category breach	CCS points per breach
.50	1	60
Wie	2	31
	3	4
	4	0.1

We total the points, for each non-compliance over a calendar year and convert the annual total into an Opra band:

- Opra Band A: 0 CCS points
- Opra Band B: 0.1 10 CCS points
- Opra Band C: 10.1 30 CCS points
- Opra Band D: 30.1 60 CCS points
- Opra Band E: 60.1 149.9 CCS points
- Opra Band F: 150 + CCS points

#### How your compliance rating will affect your Opra band

Your base Opra score will be reduced if you achieve a band A for your commence rating. This reflects the reduction in risk posed by well-managed installations.

If you have an occasional minor breach of a permit condition we will not change your overall Opra risk score.

If you have experienced greater non-compliance and have a ban Digher than B, your basic Opra risk score will increase due to the additional workload we generally associate with higher compliance banding.

Details of the charge adjustment for each Opra band are included in the Environmental Permitting Charging Scheme Guidance.

#### Telling you about your compliance rating backand permit breaches

We will:

- Tell you as soon as possible of any yon-compliance and how we will classify this under the CCS. We will also tell you about any proposed enforcement action to deal with the breach:
- Give you the opportunity to arify/discuss with an Environment Agency officer why we have awarded the even specific CCS category;
- Tell you how to raise the matter with the Environment Agency officer's line manager if
  you aren't happy with the categorisation of a non-compliance. If you consider we
  haven't applied our published guidance on CCS, see who to contact on page 24;
- Tell you about all non-compliance events that we use to calculate your compliance rating attribute band.

#### If a permit is transferred between operators

If you have a permit that has been transferred from a previous operator, the compliance rating for the previous operator will continue to apply to you. This is because the previous compliance record at a site continues to be a good indicator of the amount of regulatory effort we need to carry out.

If the previous compliance rating was band C, D, E or F, but we have strong evidence that you are very different to the old operator and the previous non-compliance issues have been dealt with, or can be quickly sorted out, we will reset the compliance rating band to band B.

If you have a permit which has been partially transferred to you, we will make a decision on a case by case basis as to which operator will receive the compliance rating associated with

the pre-transfer permit. This will be based on our knowledge of the site and the operators concerned.

This document is out of date abat from pages 5 to 13.

...ator and Pollution Risk Appraisal ...ator and Pollution Risk Appraisal ...ator and Pollution Risk Appraisal ...ator and Pollution South ...ator and Pollution Risk Appraisal Both ...ator and Pollution Risk Appraisal Risk Apprais

# Appendix 1 – Rehabilitation of Offenders Guidance

#### **Relevant Offences for Operator Performance**

Enactments for offences considered relevant for recording under the enforcement history element of the Operator Performance attribute are listed in the table below. The offences are specific to the permitted facility, i.e. only offences committed within the facility boundary are recorded. Relevant offences committed by any person operating within the facility boundary prior to permit issue will also be recorded. Operators with more than one permitted facility who are convicted of a relevant offence will only have this offence recorded against the Opra profile for the facility where the offence occurred.

- Control of Major Accident and Hazards Regulations 1999
- Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016
- Environmental Protection Act 1990, section 33, 57(5), 59(5), 69(9), 70(4), 71(3) or 80(4)
  - o Integrated pollution control waste management statutory nuisance
- Landfill (England and Wales) Regulations 2002, egulation 17(1)
- Pollution Prevention and Control (England and Wales) Regulations 2000
  - o Integrated pollution prevention and ontrol
- Water Resources Act 1990
  - Pollution of surface and groundwater
- Control of Major Accident and Hazards Regulations 1999
- Control of Pollution (Amendment Oct 1989: Section 1, 5 or 7(3)
- Customs and Excise Management Act 1979: Section 170 (for environmental/metal theft related offences only)
- Environment Act 1995: Section 110(2)
- Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016: Regulation 38
- Environmental Protection Act 1990: Section 33 and 34
- Food and Environment Protection Act 1985: Section 9(1)
- Fraud Act 2006: Section 1 (for environmental/metal theft related offences only)
- Hazardous Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2005
- Hazardous Waste (Wales) Regulations 2005
- Land England and Wales) Regulations 2002: Regulation 17(1)
- Pollution Prevention and Control (England and Wales) Regulations 2000
- Proceeds of Crime Act 2002: Sections 329, 330, 331 & 332 (for environmental/metal theft related offences only)
  - Producer Responsibility Obligations (Packaging Waste) Regulations 2007
- Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 (for environmental/metal theft related offences only)
- Theft Act 1968: Sections 1, 8, 9, 10, 11, 17, 18, 22 & 25 (for environmental/metal theft related offences only)
- Transfrontier Shipment of Waste Regulations 1994 & 2007
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Regulations 2006
- Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011: Regulation 42
- Water Resources Act 1991: Section 85, 202 or 206

## The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 Guidance

- The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 allows an individual who has been convicted. of a criminal offence and has not been sentenced to more than two and a half years in prison to become a 'rehabilitated person' at the end of a "rehabilitation period'. This is provided they have not been convicted of an indictable offence during that period. At the end of this period, the conviction is treated as 'spent'.
- 2. For the purposes of all of the relevant convictions tests, a rehabilitated person should be treated as a person who has not committed, been charged with, prosecuted to, convicted of, or sentenced for the offence or offences which are spent. Thus, such offences do not have to be disclosed on any application form nor do we have to consider them in any application.
- 3. The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 does not apply to corporate includes companies. In considering relevant convictions agains corporate body, Government Circulars 11/91 and 11/94 and Waste Management Paper 4 all note that convictions cannot become 'spent' and must be disclosed in applications. However, the Government has advised us to consider whether the conviction would have been spent had it been committed by an individual.

The rehabilitation periods commonly applicable to relevant convictions are indicated in the table below. This is only a summary and it should be noted that different periods apply to juveniles.

For the purposes of Opra, the time 'spent' for notices issued by the COMAH competent authority will be the same as if these were notices issued by the Environment Agency, for example COMAH improvement notice would become spent after one year.

Commonly applicable rehabilitation periods		
Sentence	Rehabilitation period (from date of conviction)	
A sentence of prison or youth custody of more than 6 months and polexceeding 2½ years	10 years	
A sentence of prison or youth custody of 6 months or less	7 years	
Fine	5 years	
Community Punishment Order	5 years	
Contraunity Rehabilitation Order	5 years	
Conditional discharge	1 year, or until the order expires (whichever is longer)	
Bound over	1 year, or until the order expires (whichever is longer)	
Absolute discharge	6 months	

#### **Further information**

All the Opra documents are available or by calling our general enquiry line on 03708 506 506.

If you have any questions or comments on Opra, or suggestions as to how we could improve either the scheme or any of the supporting documents, please email us at enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk., call 03708 506 506 or write to us at:

This document is out of date apart from pages 5 to 13.